
 

 
 

 

CABINET 
 

4.00 pm WEDNESDAY, 16TH JUNE, 2021 
 

REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

 
 

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording may be broadcast on the Authority’s internet 
 

All attendees will be in view of the camera and, by attending you are consenting to being 
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings being used as outlined 

above. 

 

 

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department.  An item is 
subject to call-in within 5 working days from the date a decision is published unless 

reference to an item’s urgency is made at the time the decision is made.  Any member 
of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685 725284) or email 

democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be found 
on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

OPEN SESSION 

Information Reports 

3. Levelling Up Funding   

 To receive report of the Interim Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

5 - 12 

4. Roll-out of the UK Community Renewal Fund   

 To receive report of the Interim Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

13 - 26 

5. Any Other Business Deemed Urgent by the Chair   

CLOSED SESSION 

Exempt 

In order for the following to be considered in private, it is suggested that the 
public be excluded from the meeting on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph/s (14) under Part 4 
of Schedule 12A Section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
 

6. Award of the Special Tuition Contract   

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Education 
 
 
 
 

27 - 32 

 



 
 

COMPOSITION: Councillors     L Mytton (Chair) 
                       C Davies (Vice-Chair)  

 
 

 Councillors     A Barry, D Hughes, G Thomas and 
T Rogers 
 

 together with appropriate officers 
 

 

 
If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 

democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
CABINET - INFORMATION REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:   Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Levelling Up Funding  
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
  
1.1 The Levelling Up Fund was announced by the UK Government at the 2020 Spending 

Review.  The Fund will focus on capital investment in local infrastructure, thereby 
building on and consolidating prior programmes such as the Local Growth Fund and 
Towns Fund. 

 
1.2  The Fund sits within the wider context of the Chancellor’s announcement at the 

Spending Review of £100 billion of capital spending in 2021-22, a £30 billion cash 
increase compared to 2019-20. This is part of plans to deliver over £600 billion in 
gross public sector investment over the next five years. 

 
1.3  The Levelling Up Fund will invest in local infrastructure that has a visible impact on 

people and their communities.  This includes a range of high value local investment 
priorities, including local transport schemes, urban regeneration projects and cultural 
assets. 

 
1.4  A prospectus has been issued by the UK Government which sets out the approach 

for the first round of the Fund, which will prioritise bids that can demonstrate 
investment or begin delivery on the ground in 21/22.   

 
1.5  The Fund will focus investment in projects that require up to £20m of funding. 

However, there is also scope for investing in larger high value transport projects, by 
exception. 

 

Date Written 1st June 2021  

Report Author Zoe Thomas / Chris Long  

Service Area Housing and Regeneration  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non-Exempt  

Committee Date 16th June 2021  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



1.6  The UK Government expects Members of Parliament, as democratically-elected 
representatives of the area, to back one bid that they see as a priority.  The number 
of bids that a local authority in the first category can make will relate to the number of 
MPs in their area.   

 
1.7  Upon the launch of the UK Government’s Levelling Up Programme Merthyr Tydfil 

CBC gave significant consideration, to the potential projects that could be submitted 
within the first round of funding.  This including schemes aligned to all three themes 
identified above. 

 
1.8  Following numerous discussions internally, and following a detailed review of the 

criteria outlined within the Levelling Up Fund Prospectus, it was determined and 
agreed that Merthyr Tydfil CBC were not in a position to submit a proposal by the 
18th June 21 deadline, and that further development time would be needed to 
progress a future application to UK Government.  

 
 

2.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Levelling Up Fund was announced by the UK Government at the 2020 Spending 

Review.  The Fund will focus on capital investment in local infrastructure, thereby 
building on and consolidating prior programmes such as the Local Growth Fund and 
Towns Fund.  It will have a visible, tangible impact on people and places, and 
support economic recovery.  In doing so, it will also create opportunity across the 
country, prioritising bids that invest in regeneration and growth in places in need and 
areas of low productivity and connectivity.  

 
2.2  It has been identified that economic differences remain between different parts of the 

UK, including our cities, ex-industrial towns, and rural and coastal communities. 
These economic differences have real implications: they affect people’s lives through 
their pay, work opportunities, health and life chances.  Tackling these economic 
differences and driving prosperity as part of ‘levelling up’ left behind regions of the 
UK is a priority for this Government. 

 
2.3  The Fund sits within the wider context of the Chancellor’s announcement at the 

Spending Review of £100 billion of capital spending in 2021-22, a £30 billion cash 
increase compared to 2019-20. This is part of plans to deliver over £600 billion in 
gross public sector investment over the next five years.  

 
2.4  The Levelling Up Fund will invest in local infrastructure that has a visible impact on 

people and their communities.  This includes a range of high value local investment 
priorities, including local transport schemes, urban regeneration projects and cultural 
assets.  The Fund is jointly managed by HM Treasury (HMT), the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) and the Department for 
Transport (DfT).  This cross-departmental Fund represents a new approach to local 
investment and will end siloes in Whitehall that make it difficult to take a holistic 
approach to the infrastructure needs of local areas. 

 
2.5  At the Spending Review, the UK Government committed an initial £4 billion for the 

Levelling Up Fund for England over the next four years (up to 2024-25) and set aside 

Page 6



at least £800 million for Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland.  The UK Government 
will use the new financial assistance powers in the UKIM Act to make the Fund 
available to the whole of the UK, enabling all communities to receive the investment 
and support they need to recover from the pandemic.  As such, up to £4.8 billion until 
2024-25 will be available for the Fund across the UK, with at least £800 million 
invested in Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland.  Where appropriate, MHCLG and 
DfT will seek advice from the relevant devolved administrations at the shortlisting 
stage on projects that will be delivered in their geographical areas, including on 
deliverability and alignment with existing provision. 

 
3.0 APROACH IN ENGLAND, SCOTLAND AND WALES INCLUDING 

ELIGIBILITY 
 
3.1 In England, Scotland and Wales, funding will be delivered through local authorities. 

The Scottish and Welsh Territorial Offices will be consulted in the assessment of 
relevant bids. 

 
3.2  A prospectus has been issued by the UK Government which sets out the approach 

for the first round of the Fund, which will prioritise bids that can demonstrate 
investment or begin delivery on the ground in 21/22.  The approach identified within 
the prospectus will remain under review for future rounds.  The Fund is open to all 
local areas.  The amount of funding each area receives will be determined on a 
competitive basis to ensure value for money. 

 
3.3  All areas in the UK are able to access the Fund. Specifically, in Great Britain: 
 

- Unitary authorities (including metropolitan borough councils), London 
borough councils and district councils in two tier areas in England; and, 
unitary authorities in Scotland and Wales are eligible to submit bids.  
- County councils with transport powers, combined authorities, mayoral 
combined authorities and the Greater London Authority (GLA) are eligible to 
submit one transport bid; and unitary authorities in Scotland and Wales, and 
unitary authorities in England with transport powers are able to submit one 
additional bid which must be for transport. 

 
3.4  The UK Government expects Members of Parliament, as democratically-elected 

representatives of the area, to back one bid that they see as a priority.  The number 
of bids that a local authority in the first category can make will relate to the number of 
MPs in their area.  Accordingly, local authorities can submit one bid for every MP 
whose constituency lies wholly within their boundary.  Every local authority can 
submit at least one bid.  Where an MP’s constituency crosses multiple local 
authorities, one local authority should take responsibility as the lead bidder and local 
areas should work together to designate that lead bidder.  MHCLG will engage with 
local government on whether any further guidance would be helpful on who should 
be designated ‘lead bidders’ in these circumstances. 

 
3.5  The Fund will focus investment in projects that require up to £20m of funding. 

However, there is also scope for investing in larger high value transport projects, by 
exception.  Bids above £20m and below £50m will be accepted for transport projects 
only, such as road schemes, and can be submitted by any bidding local authority. 

Page 7



They will be subject to a more detailed business case process and will need to score 
highly overall.  Local authorities may wish to consider pooling funding from their bids 
in order to improve the chance of taking forward a larger transport scheme. 

 
3.6 All bids should have the approval of the relevant authority responsible for delivering 

them.  For example, transport bids submitted by district councils should have the 
approval of their relevant transport authority.  Bidding authorities are encouraged to 
collaborate with neighbouring authorities on cross boundary schemes and to submit 
joint proposals across their local areas where appropriate. 

 
3.7  All bidding authorities should consult a range of local stakeholders across the full 

geography of a place in developing their proposed investments for the Fund. 
Potential relevant local stakeholders and partners include local businesses, public 
transport providers, police and emergency services, community representatives, 
environmental representatives and universities and FE Colleges (FECs).  Where 
relevant, bidding authorities should also consider how to reach stakeholders from 
harder to reach rural communities in formulating proposals.  Bids should 
demonstrate evidence of this overall local engagement as part of their strategic case 
through stakeholder letters or similar. 

 
3.8  The Government recognises the important role of Members of Parliament in 

championing the interests of their constituents.  The UK Government expects bidding 
authorities to consult local Members of Parliament as part of their bid; though such 
support from local MPs is not a necessary condition for a successful bid.  MPs can 
have a positive role in prioritising bids and helping broker local consensus.  When 
considering the weighting given to bids, the expectation is that an MP will back one 
bid which they see as a priority, and any bid may have priority backing from multiple 
MPs and local stakeholders.  But Members of Parliament may also want to support 
any or all schemes that would have a benefit to their constituencies in the usual way. 

 

4.0 INVESTMENT THEMES IN THE FIRST ROUND OF FUNDING IN 21 / 
22 INCLUDING FUNDING AND TARGETING APPROACH.  

 
4.1  The first round of the Fund will focus on three themes: smaller transport projects that 

make a genuine difference to local areas; town centre and high street regeneration; 
and support for maintaining and expanding the UK’s world-leading portfolio of 
cultural and heritage assets, in particular: 

 
- Transport investments including (but not limited to) public transport, active 
travel, bridge repairs, bus priority lanes, local road improvements and major 
structural maintenance, and accessibility improvements. We are requesting 
proposals for high-impact small, medium and by exception larger local 
transport schemes to reduce carbon emissions, improve air quality, cut 
congestion, support economic growth and improve the experience of transport 
users. 
- Regeneration and town centre investment, building on the Towns Fund 
framework to upgrade eyesore buildings and dated infrastructure, acquire and 
regenerate brownfield sites, invest in secure community infrastructure and 
crime reduction, and bring public services and safe community spaces into 
town and city centres. 

Page 8



- Cultural investment maintaining, regenerating, or creatively repurposing 
museums, galleries, visitor attractions (and associated green spaces) and 
heritage assets as well as creating new community-owned spaces to support 
the arts and serve as cultural spaces.  
 

4.2  Investment proposals should focus on supporting high priority projects that will make 
a visible impact in local areas, recognising that what constitutes priority investment 
will vary across local authorities and geographies, including in rural areas of the UK. 

 
4.3  The UK Government’s Net Zero and wider environmental ambitions represent a key 

part of the commitment to building back better – and this is particularly important with 
regards to capital and infrastructure projects, which have a visible impact on our 
surroundings.  Projects should be aligned to and support Net Zero goals: for 
instance, be based on low or zero carbon best practice; adopt and support 
innovative clean tech and/or support the growth of green skills and sustainable 
supply chains.  Bids should also consider how projects can work with the natural 
environment to achieve project objectives – considering at a minimum the project’s 
impact on our country’s natural assets and nature, as well as the resilience of the 
capital and infrastructure project to potential hazards such as flooding.  

 
4.4  The Levelling Up Fund is a competitive fund, with funding distributed to places 

across the UK on the basis of successful project selection. The Fund will set aside at 
least £800 million across Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland over four years from 
2021-2022 to 2024-2025.  For the first round of funding, at least 9% of total UK 
allocations will be set aside for Scotland, 5% for Wales, and 3% for Northern Ireland. 

 
4.5  Within the competition, funding will be targeted towards places in England, Scotland 

and Wales with the most significant need, as measured by an index taking into 
account the following the following place characteristics: 

 
• need for economic recovery and growth; 
• need for improved transport connectivity; and, 
• need for regeneration. 
 

4.6  Using this index, places have been placed into category 1, 2, or 3, with category 1 
representing places with the highest levels of identified need.  These bandings will 
form part of the UK Government’s criteria for assessing bids.  While preference will 
be given to bids from higher priority areas, the bandings do not represent eligibility 
criteria, nor the amount or number of bids a place can submit.  Bids from categories 
2 and 3 will still be considered for funding on their merits of deliverability, value for 
money and strategic fit, and could still be successful if they are of exceptionally high 
quality. 

 
4.7  In the first round of funding, the UK Government will prioritise projects which are able 

to demonstrate investment or begin delivery on the ground in the 21 / 22.  There will 
be future opportunities to bid in subsequent rounds.  All funding provided from the 
Fund is to be spent by 31st March 2024, and, exceptionally, into 2024-25 for larger 
schemes. 

 
 

Page 9



5.0 PUTTING TOGETHER PROPOSALS  
 
5.1  Local areas are required to take a holistic approach to their infrastructure needs 

across transport, regeneration and cultural investment when developing their bids. 
Applications for funding should clearly demonstrate how proposed investments will 
support relevant local strategies and their objectives for improving infrastructure, 
promoting growth, enhancing the natural environment and making their areas more 
attractive places to live and work.  Local areas will also need to show why the 
proposed investment or set of investments represents the highest value local 
priorities. 

 
5.2  Each bid submitted by local institutions can be a bid for an individual project or a   

package bid consisting of multiple projects.  Bids for an individual project or package 
bids can both request up to £20 million of funding, except in exceptional cases. 
Package bids must clearly explain how their component elements are aligned with 
each other and represent a coherent set of interventions.  They can include a mix of 
projects from the Fund’s three investment themes but any one bid should not include 
multiple unrelated investments. 

 
5.3  Local authorities may submit joint bids.  The maximum bid size for joint bids will be 

determined by adding up the individual £20 million caps of each bidding authority. 
Joint bids will count towards the maximum number of bids that each local authority is 
able to submit.  Joint proposals can contain a combination of interventions both 
within counties, regions and across borders.  However, they must not be a disparate 
package of interventions - as part of the strategic case bidders must demonstrate 
that joint bids are a cohesive and coherent investment proposal.  Any elements of a 
joint bid that are jointly delivered should be fundamental to the joint bid as a whole 
and serve to unlock any elements of the bid that are not delivered jointly. 

 
5.4  In the case of package bids containing more than one project, bids should come in 

two parts, covering the following: 
 
- Part I (for the whole overall bid): a summary of the project proposals within 

the bid (up to a maximum of three projects per bid); and an overall 
financial case; 

- Part II (for each individual project): the main theme this falls under; 
summary and strategic link to overall bid; information on deliverability 
(management, risk, finances, and benefits) 
 

5.5  To apply for investment from the first round of the Levelling Up Fund, eligible local 
institutions must submit their bids to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government by noon on Friday 18 June 2021.  Majority-transport bids will be 
assessed by the Department for Transport. Bids may also be submitted before this 
date.  It is expected that investment decisions will be made by the UK Government 
for this funding round by autumn 2021.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



6.0 MERTHYR TYDFIL LEVELLING UP FUND APPLICATION  
 
6.1  Upon the launch of the UK Government’s Levelling Up Programme Merthyr Tydfil 

CBC gave significant consideration, to the potential projects that could be submitted 
within the first round of funding.  This including schemes aligned to all three themes 
identified above.  

 
6.2  Following the approval by Full Council in 2020 of the Merthyr Tydfil Town Centre 

Placemaking Plan and The Cyfarthfa Plan, schemes proposed within both 
masterplans were discussed for submisison within the Levelling Up Fund 
opportunity.  

 
6.3  Following numerous discussions internally, and following a detailed review of the 

criteria outlined within the Levelling Up Fund Prospectus, it was determined and 
agreed that Merthyr Tydfil CBC were not in a position to submit a proposal by the 
18th June 21 deadline, and that further development time would be needed to 
progress a future application to UK Government.  

 
6.4  Work will continue by Merthyr Tydfil CBC over the coming months, to further develop 

projects in readiness for the future rounds of funding.  This includes potential 
opportunities aligned to the preservation of the Cyfarthfa Furnaces and the signature 
projects identified within the Merthyr Tydfil Town Centre Placemaking Plan namely, 
Railway Station Re-development and Glebeland Site Re-development.  

 
6.5  Extensive discussions have also been held with Caerphilly Council regarding a joint 

bid aligned to the Merthyr Tydfil and Rhymney Constituency and discussions have 
also been held with Gerald Jones, MP.  It has been agreed that both local authorities 
will continue conversations in order to progress with a potential joint bid within a 
future round.  Neither authority will submit a bid for the Merthyr Tydfil and Rhymney 
Constituency within the first round of funding.  

 

7.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
7.1  There are no financial implications for the authority.  
 
 

8.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Neutral/Not 
Applicable 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives   3 of 4 0 of 4 1 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development Principles - How 
have you considered the five ways of 
working? 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

Page 11



3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh 
Language) 

 
2 of 10 

 

 
0 of 10 

 

 
8 of 10 

 

4. Socio-economic Disadvantage  
0 of 6 

 

 
0 of 6 

 

 
6 of 6 

 

5. Consultation and Engagement 
Undertaken 

Due to be 
Undertaken 

Not Required 

0 of 1 1 of 1 
 

0 of 1 
 

6. Data and Evidence to inform the proposal Yes No 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
1 of 1 

 

7. Biodiversity and the resilience of 
Ecosystems 

Maintained Enhanced Reduced 
Neutral/Not 
Applicable 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
1 of 1 

 

Summary 

The main positive 
impacts are: 

The main positive impacts are the Fund will focus on capital investment in 
local infrastructure, having a visible, tangible impact on people and places, 
and supporting economic recovery.   

The main negative 
impacts are: 

 
No negative impacts have been identified. 
 

 
 
 
ALYN OWEN 
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS 
CABINET MEMBER FOR 

REGENERATION, TRANSFORMATION 
AND COMMERCIALISATION    

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  

 

Page 12



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
CABINET - INFORMATION REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:   Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Roll-out of the UK Community Renewal Fund  
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
  
1.1 The report below outlines the priorities which UK Government wishes to fund 

potential projects; under the new Community Renewal Fund in preparation for the 
forthcoming Shared Prosperity Fund which will be launched in early 2022. 

 
1.2 The report outlines the Council’s role in marketing the CRF to localised organisations 

and the role we played in assisting organisations in making funding applications 
before the 24th May submission deadline. 

 
1.3  It covers the Council’s role in developing a structured application shortlisting criteria 

and explains the process of analysing applications prior to submission to UK 
Government by Friday 18th June 2021.  

 
1.4 The report also touches upon how the Council has been financially support to assist 

with the coordinating of applications as well as how we will be assisted if any of the 
Merthyr Tydfil applications are successful.  

 
 

2.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The UK Community Renewal Fund (CRF) was announced by UK Government back 

in April 2021 in order to provide an additional £220 million of funding to help local 
areas prepare for the launch of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund in 2022 which will 
consequently replace the EU structural funds. 

 

Date Written 1st June 2021 ** 

Report Author Ryan Barry / Chris Long  

Service Area Council Regeneration  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt  

Committee Date 16th June 2021  

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



2.2 The CRF Fund aims to support people and communities most in need across the UK 
to pilot programmes and new approaches and will invest in skills, community and 
place, local business, and supporting people into employment.  

 
2.3 All places across the UK are eligible for pilot funding, however, UK Government has 

identified 100 places, based on an index of economic resilience, which will be 
prioritised as part of the overall finance available.   

 
2.4 The UK Community Renewal Fund will support communities in piloting programmes 

and new approaches, unleashing new ideas to better support people and 
communities in need across the UK. The Fund will look to support innovative 
responses to local challenges and local need across the UK, spanning urban, rural 
and coastal areas. 

 
2.5 UK Government set a maximum spend of £3m per priority area and sought  

applications that were circa £500,000, made-up of at least 90% revenue funding and 
need to be complete by the 31st March 2022. 

 
2.6 In relation to the types of projects that UK Government wished to fund they 

developed the UK Community Renewal Fund Prospectus and asked potential 
applicants to ensure that their respective projects aligns itself with at least one of the 
investment priorities below: 

 
 Investment in skills 
 Investment for local business 
 Investment in communities and place 
 Supporting people into employment 

 
2.7 In terms of ‘eligibility criteria’ the following organisations were deemed to be eligible 

to apply for the Community Renewal Fund: 
 

 Local district councils 
 Voluntary and community sector organisations 
 Local education providers such as universities and colleges. 
 Umbrella business groups. 

 
2.8 From a coordination and resource perspective, the Council were tasked with leading 

on all CRF related marketing campaigns, working with partners to develop projects / 
bids and undertake the actual shortlisting of applications prior to submitting the UK 
Government by Friday 18th June 2021. Incidentally, each of the 100 prioritised areas 
across the UK will be given £20,000 to assist them with bid coordination and the 
actual assessment process. 

  

 
3.0 LAUNCH AND INITIAL MANAGEMENT OF THE UK CRF IN 

MERTHYR TYDFIL: 
 
3.1 The Council launched the CRF on Monday 26th April 2021 with a dedicated page on 

our www.merthyr.gov.uk website. The web page held information on the fund as well 
as all of the documentation needed to make a successful bid as well as a developing 

Page 14

http://www.merthyr.gov.uk/


a unique email address (CRF@merthyr.gov.uk) in order to engage with prospective 
applicants and answer any questions.  

 
3.2 Furthermore, we engaged with our Corporate Communications Team in order to 

advertise the opportunity locally via our Council’s social media pages. In addition, the 
team also worked with specific departments across the Council to also market the 
Fund via their own respective networks. 

 
3.3 As part of the advertising process the Council also met with our County Borough 

CVC – VAMT in order to share important information and to assist the organisation in 
marketing the opportunity to their 400+ members whilst acting as a reference point 
for questions.   

 
3.4 The Council set a deadline date of Monday 24th May to receive all funding 

applications whilst also developing a specific timeline that applicants needed to be 
made aware of: 

 
Date: Milestone: 

Midnight on Monday 24th May 
2021 

Application submission deadline 

Between 25th May to 8th June 
2021 

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council will assist project proposals 
including: 
 

 Processing of eligible applications 
 Appraisal, selection and prioritisation of projects 
 Final priority project shortlist agreed 

 

Friday 18th June 2021 Portfolio of projects submitted to UK Government 

Late July 2021 UK Government shortlists and approve project submissions  

Early August 2021 Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council contacts successful applicants 

Early August 2021 Projects commence  

Mid-December 2021 Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council undertakes a mid-term review of 
projects 

Mid February 2022 Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council undertakes a mid-term review of 
projects 

31st March 2022 Official completion of all UK Community Renewal Fund projects  

 
 
 

4.0 UPDATE ON SUBMITTED APPLICATIONS: 
 
4.1 Subsequently after the 24th May deadline the team received x16 applications that 

ranged in size and scope. Of the x16 applications only six of the submissions were 
from Merthyr Tydfil based organisations with five coming from South East Wales and 
the remainder coming from England. 

 
4.2 From the x16 applications submitted to the Council for assessment a vast majority 

were focussed on employability and training. In addition, other applications focussed 
primarily around enterprise development, community engagement, the creative 
sector and app development. 

 

Page 15

mailto:CRF@merthyr.gov.uk


4.3 In terms of the finance requested applications ranged from requests from just 
£50,000 to £1,661,080. In totality, the collective amount of finance being requested 
by all x16 applicants amounted to £6,798,624 – more than double of Merthyr Tydfil’s 
maximum allocation of £3,000,000. 

 
4.4 UK Government stipulated that the bringing in additional match funding would not 

positively impact applicant’s respective applications, however, from the £6,798,624 
being requested only £582,965 of additional, leveraged matched funding would have 
potentially been used.  

 
 
 

5.0 UK GOVERNMENT AND MTCBC SHORTLISTING PROCESSESS: 
 
5.1  As mentioned previous in Section 2.8 part of the Council’s coordination role is to 

appraise all of applications received and produce a shortlist of projects for an 
eventual submission to UK Government by Friday 18th June 2021.  

 
5.2 As part of the ‘guidance’ provided by UK Government there is a directive that the 

Council had to ensure that we follow an open bidding process in inviting bids. 
However, we have the autonomy to follow our own processes but needed to 
consider UK Government’s ‘Cabinet Office Grants Standards’, drawing on them as 
examples of good practice and sources of information. 

 
5.3 Considering the above, the team then designed a three phased assessment 

process. In ‘Phase 1’ the team used the UK Government’s own ‘Gateway Criteria’ 
(see image below) which sifted out any potential ineligible application based on the 
priorities set-out in the ‘prospectus’ as well as considering project end dates and 
branding etc. This process was undertaken by the team.  

 

Page 16



 
UK Government’s Gateway Criteria 

 
 
5.4 In ‘Phase 2’ a two-staged process was incorporated with ‘Stage 1’ considering the 

following: 
 

 Is the application complete? 
 Are the applicants eligible under the rules of the ‘Prospectus’? 
 Are there due diligence issues – (checks of Companies House, Charities 

Commission plus possible internal check with Revenues & Benefits for local 
organisations). 

 
5.5 The second stage of ‘Phase 2’ a more thematic assessment took place where we 

brought in key officers that work in a specific field (employability, enterprise etc.) and 

Page 17



had them to analyse those applications that covered their service area before 
determining the following factors:  

 
 Is the project proposal new, unique or needed in Merthyr Tydfil?  
 Is the applicants request for finance considered to be ‘value for money’ set against 

each applications financial breakdown and proposed outputs.  
 
5.6 If applications met all of the above two ‘Phases’ then they will go through to ‘Phase 

3’ for a full assessment. The full assessment will be carried out by the following 
people:  

 
 Leader of the Council 
 Portfolio Member  
 Leader of the Opposition  
 Deputy Chief Executive 
 Head of Regeneration & Housing 
 Strategic Programmes Manager 
 Chief Executive of VAMT (to act as an independent assessor) 

 
5.7 To strategically analyse each application the team developed an assessment criteria 

that mirrored that of UK Government so that we as a Council could base our views, 
observations and scores set against those of UK Government thereafter. 

 
5.8   The assessment of each application will be undertaken by considering two main 

criteria, which as mentioned above, UK Government will also be assessing against. 
These are: 

 
Criteria 1: Strategic Fit 
Criteria 2: Deliverability, Effectiveness and Efficiency    

 
5.9  in addition, to assist with the scoring of each question set out in Appendix 1, the 

team also developed a CRF Scoring Rationale (Appendix 2) which will assist 
assessors in determining what score to give each response in the application set 
against statements ranging from ‘Perfect Response – 5pts’ to ‘Very Poor Response 
– 1pt’. 

 
5.10  The scores of each sub-criteria question are given a mark out of 5. These are 

summed with equal weighting. This will then be converted to a percentage score for 
the theme (e.g. a maximum mark of 25 would give a score of 100%).  

 
5.11 Due to the tight timescales involved with the fund and to make the assessment 

process far easier and faster for assessors key officers from the department have 
agreed to score and give comments on each of the applications. These scores, 
comments and associated applications will be sent out to panel members so they 
have a baseline and rationale to form a view on each application with an opportunity 
to agree or change based on their views, before either sending in their respective 
scores to the team or possibly presenting these at a dedicated Panel Meeting in mid-
June 2021. 

 

Page 18



5.12 The team will then collate all of the scores from the assessors and develop an 
overall table of scores. Based on the UK Government’s Guidance document, 
applications that score over 50% are then eligible to be forwarded to UK Government 
by Friday 18th June. However, prior to full submission, the team will bring the ‘table of 
scores’ to Cabinet on Wednesday 16th June to obtain sign-off of applications prior to 
submission.   

  
 

6.0 AFTER SUBMISSION TO UK GOVERNMENT: 
 
6.1  For those successful applications that will be submitted by Friday 18th June UK 

Government will then undertake its own assessment process whilst also considering 
the scores, comments and overarching paperwork that the Council would have 
submitted. 

 
6.2  It is anticipated that UK Government will announce successful projects in late July 

2021.  
 
6.3 With regards to those successful applications for Merthyr Tydfil the Council will then 

enter into a funding agreement with UK Government to deliver successful bids. 
Furthermore, the Council will also issue agreements to successful bidders once 
funding has been agreed by the UK Government, and then undertake monitoring and 
assurance activity across the lifespan of each successful project – all of which will 
end by the 31st March 2022. 

 
 
 

7.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
7.1  As mentioned previously, the Council will receive £20,000 as a resource payment to 

help coordinate the full process outlined in this report. 
 
7.2 UK Community Renewal Fund will be paid to Lead Authorities in two tranches – 50% 

on commencement, and the balance on completion. To ensure that funding is used 
solely for the purposes for which it was awarded and minimise the risk of fraud at all 
stages of the grant cycle the Council must also establish appropriate and 
proportionate systems and processes (including addressing any potential conflicts of 
interest) to: 

 
 Manage payments to project deliverers 
 Monitor performance of project deliverers 
 Ensure that money has been spent in line with the funding agreement 

 
7.3 Importantly, the Council has the decision on how we wish to make payments to 

project deliverers e.g. in advance, in arrears or to an agreed profile. 
 
7.4 The Council must monitor the expenditure incurred under each UK Community 

Renewal Fund project and be able to report on each project as part of progress 
reports to the Secretary of State. 

 

Page 19



7.5 In addition, the Council will also establish a monitoring process to identify possible 
weaknesses or risks in the delivery of projects and provide for corrective action to be 
taken. This may include checking claims and progress reports, testing samples of 
expenditure, and or undertaking monitoring visits (on-site or remotely). These 
processes should be proportionate to the scale and complexity of and risk attached 
to projects. 

 
7.6 To support the Council in managing the above process relating to successful Merthyr 

Tydfil Projects UK Government will incorporate a ‘management cost calculation – 
between 2%-3%’ based on the total grant awarded to Merthyr Tydfil e.g. if Merthyr 
Tydfil is awarded £2m of projects we will receive between £40,000 - £60,0000 to 
manage those projects until 31st March 2022. 

 

8.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Neutral/Not 
Applicable 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives   3 of 4 0 of 4 1 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development Principles - How 
have you considered the five ways of 
working? 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh 
Language) 

 
2 of 10 

 

 
0 of 10 

 

 
8 of 10 

 

4. Socio-economic Disadvantage  
0 of 6 

 

 
0 of 6 

 

 
6 of 6 

 

5. Consultation and Engagement 
Undertaken 

Due to be 
Undertaken 

Not Required 

0 of 1 1 of 1 
 

0 of 1 
 

6. Data and Evidence to inform the proposal Yes No 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
1 of 1 

 

7. Biodiversity and the resilience of 
Ecosystems 

Maintained Enhanced Reduced 
Neutral/Not 
Applicable 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
0 of 1 

 

 
1 of 1 

 

Summary 

The main positive 
impacts are: 

The main positive impacts are the CRF will focus on the investment in 
revenue and small capital items in local infrastructure, having a visible, 
tangible impact on people and places, and supporting economic recovery.   

The main negative 
impacts are: 

 
No negative impacts have been identified. 

Page 20



 
 
 
ALYN OWEN 
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS 
CABINET MEMBER FOR 

REGENERATION, TRANSFORMATION 
AND COMMERCIALISATION    

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



No. Name of Organisation:

Type of 

Org.:

Locally 

Based:

100% 

Local 

Impact:

Type of Project:

CRF Grant 

Being 

Requested:

Match 

Funding 

Secured:

Does the Project 

Get Through the 

UK CRF Gateway:

If no, Add Comments 

Below:

Is the 

Application 

Complete:

Is the 

Spend 

Eligible:

Is the 

Project 

New to 

Merthyr 

Tydfil:

Are there 

any Due 

Dilligence 

Issues:

Comments:

Put Forward 

to a Full 

Assessment:

1 Business in Focus Social Ltd. No Yes Enterprise 213,126 No Project already exists No

2 TGP Cymru Voluntary No Yes Skills/Training 328,879 Yes Debs to Assess Yes Yes

3

Direct 2U Private

No Yes Skills/Training

50,000 5,600

Yes Yes
Low grant requested and low 

impact in terms of outputs

4

Devopsgroup Private

No Yes Skills/Training

504,000

Funding their staff to run 

training???
Yes Yes

Funding a private companies 

staff to run training. Also, 

£504,000 just for their staff 

over a seven month period 

with no real rationale behind 

salary costs!!! 
No

5

Maybe Solutions Private

No Yes Train./Enterprise

257,241 417,565

Match funding is based on 9 

months access to their online 

platform!! They want £85,172 

of grant for their staff costs 

based on percentages. May 

not be innovative or new 

enough either. Another large 

portion of money is given to 

businesses for social media 

grants - unsure if this is a part 

of their business too!!!

No

6

Gellideg Foundation Voluntary

Yes Yes Training./App Dev.

492,430

Yes
Debs to Assess Yes Yes

Not sure about its impact or 

need.

7

Radikl Private

No Yes Enterprise

92,750

Yes Yes No

No research into Merthyr 

Tydfil / need / Hubs and seems 

a 'copy and paste' job. Not 

new or innovative for Merthyr 

Tydfil. Pretty much paying for 

their staff to work with x40 

businesses. Impact is very low.

No

UK CRF GATEWAY CRITERIA: MTCBC STAGE 2 ASSESSMENT

P
age 23



8

BIGC Voluntary

No Yes Skills/Training

169,740

Project seems very 'fluffy' with 

a low impact rating. Not a lot 

of information surrounding 

outputs or actual need for the 

project. Match coming from 

staff / volunteer time is 

questionable for such a fund. 

9

H Factor Social Ltd.

Yes Yes Skills/Training

212,000 3,000

Concerns surrounding the 

orgs. Viability to implement 

and manage such a project. 

Previous problems 

encountered with them before 

on land usage. No clear plan as 

to what actual land they wish 

to use or have secured 

(unaware of Quakers Yard 

site). Cited 100% work in 

Merthyr but proposing work in 

Abercynon. Project End date 

cited as being 30th June 2021 

which is a mistake. Timescales 

are extremley tight. Capital 

costs do not add up either!! 

also, Risk Assessment is very 

weak.

10 Legacy International Social Ltd. Training/App Dev. 449,064

11 Third Sector Consortia Social Ltd. Train./Employment 539,906

12

Tieta Uk Private

No Skills/Training

1,661,080

Lacks innovation and is not 

unique to Merthyr. Application 

is plain with little information. 

The amount being requested is 

too much (in my opinion) with 

half for their staffing costs and 

a further £300,000 for their 

own E-Learning Module!!. 

Other ancillary costs are way 

too much.

13 Twyn Community Hub Charity Yes Community 259,854

14 MT Leisure Trust Voluntary Yes Creative/Skills 903,028 56,800

15 Tydfil Training Voluntary Yes Enterprise 506,000 100,000

16 Torfaen Council Yes Skills/Training 126,526

P
age 24



COMMUNITY RENEWAL FUND - SCORING RATIONALE

MUST BE USED WHEN EVALUATING QUESTIONS

SCORE CLASSIFICATION

Perfect response

All issues addressed comprehensively stating a position clearly and unequivocally in line with or exceeding the requirement of the overall 

question.  No omissions in the response.  Inspires total confidence of ability to that aspect of the work / project. No reservation about the 

organisations / applicants capability, capacity and willingness.

Excellent response

All requirements addresses thoroughly and convincingly, providing significant evidence of applicants understanding and experience.  The 

response is credible and positive and demonstrates a position completely in accordance with the actual question.  Inspires great confidence 

of applicant's ability to develop successful, beneficial solutions.  No significant reservations about the applicant's capability, capacity and 

willingness.

Good response

Provides a credible, comprehensive and convincing response to all/majority of the question asked.  Demonstrates sound 

understanding/experience/credibility against the actual question.  Overall inspires confidence that the applicant has the capability and 

capacity to deliver the contract objectives.

Poor response

Only addresses the question to a limited degree.  Fails to demonstrate substantive understanding/experience/credibility against the set 

questions.  Fails to convince that the applicant would be able to make a significant positive contribution against what is set out in the CRF 

Prospectus.  Gives significant cause for concern about the ability to develop an acceptable, meaninful and beneficial project.

Very poor response – unacceptable

Either completely fails to address the criteria, fails to demonstrate any understanding/experience/credibility against the actual question.  No 

confidence that the applicant would be able to develop a successful project. 

An unanswered response or a response that is totally unacceptable and does not fulfill the requirement in any way.

1

GUIDANCE NOTES:

1. Each question is scored out of 5 points as per the rationale below.

2. Assessors of CRF applications are required to use this scoring system and refer to the classification for each score when evaluating questions. Check that your comments do not contradict the 

classification for the score you have given.

3. Assessors must evaluate each application in isolation against the question content, specification and scoring rationale. Individual applicants must not be compared with one another. An answer 

cannot be penalised for something the question does not ask for.

4. It is advisable that Assessors begin each evaluation at 5 points/'perfect'. This may help with identifying and justifying any score lower than 5 and assist with the Assessors supporting comments.

5. Assessors are required to provide comments to explain and justify their score. The more detailed the comments the better. It is advisable that comments are constructive in nature, drawing 

attention to areas that are good and importantly, any areas that would have increased the score rather than criticising the answer without offering advice for improvement.

5

4

3

2

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 27

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Levelling Up Funding
	4 Roll-out of the UK Community Renewal Fund
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	6 Award of the Special Tuition Contract

